
 
EXECUTIVE SERVICES  

TONBRIDGE & MALLING 

BOROUGH COUNCIL 

 

 

Chief Executive 
Julie Beilby BSc (Hons) MBA 
 

Gibson Building 
Gibson Drive 
Kings Hill, West Malling 
Kent ME19 4LZ 
West Malling (01732) 844522 

 

 
NB - This agenda contains proposals, 
recommendations and options. These do 
not represent Council policy or decisions 
until they have received proper 
consideration through the full decision 
making process. 

Contact: Democratic Services 
committee.services@tmbc.gov.uk 

 
19 February 2021 

  

 
To: MEMBERS OF THE TONBRIDGE FORUM 
 (Copies to all Members of the Council) 

 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
Your attendance is requested at a meeting of the Tonbridge Forum to be held online via 
MS Teams on Monday, 1st March, 2021 commencing at 7.30 pm.  Information on how to 
observe the meeting will be published on the Council’s website. 
 
 

Yours faithfully 
 
JULIE BEILBY 
 
Chief Executive 

  

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
 
1. Apologies for absence  
 

 

2. Minutes  
 

5 - 8 

 To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of Tonbridge Forum 
held on 7 September 2020 
 

3. Update on any action identified in the last Minutes  
 

 

Public Document Pack



4. Kent Police Update  
 

 

 Representatives from Kent Police to advise of recent initiatives, operations and 
activity of relevance to Tonbridge and the surrounding area. 
 
Attendance is subject to operational pressures. 
 

5. Borough Councils Response to the Coronavirus Pandemic  
 

9 - 18 

 The Leader of the Council (Councillor Nicolas Heslop) will provide an update on 
the current position. 
 
The report of the Chief Executive and Management Team presented to Cabinet of 
26 January 2021 is attached for information. 
 

6. Tonbridge and Malling Services Update  
 

 

 Members of the Cabinet will provide updates on a number of issues relevant to 
their portfolios, including a response to the Tonbridge Bicycle Users Group on the 
Local Walking and Cycling Infrastructure Plan.  
 

7. Tonbridge Bicycle Users Group  - Nomination of Membership  
 

 

 A request has been received that the User Group be considered for formal 
membership of the Tonbridge Forum. 
 

8. Kent County Council Services Update  
 

 

 Representatives from Kent County Council to provide an update on recent 
initiatives, consultations and other matters of interest. 
 

9. Tonbridge Theatre and Art Group (Oast Theatre) - Details of 
online Exhibition  

 

 

 The Group to provide details of its online Exhibition 
 



 
 
 

DISTRIBUTION 
 
Borough Council Representatives: 
 

Members of the Forum: 
 

Cllr N J Heslop (Chairman) 
Cllr J R S Lark (Vice-Chairman) 
Cllr Mrs J A Anderson 
Cllr Mrs P A Bates 
Cllr M D Boughton 
Cllr V M C Branson 
Cllr G C Bridge 
Cllr A E Clark 
Cllr D W King 
Cllr K King 
Cllr M R Rhodes 
Cllr Miss G E Thomas 
Cllr F G Tombolis 
 

Mr R Long (County Councillor) 
Mr M Payne (County Councillor) 
The Bridge Trust 
Kent Police (Tonbridge) 
St John's Ambulance 
Society of Friends 
Tonbridge Allotments and Gardens 
Tonbridge and Malling Seniors 
Tonbridge Art Group 
Tonbridge Area Churches Together 
Tonbridge Citizens' Advice Bureau 
Tonbridge Civic Society 
Tonbridge District Scout Council 
Tonbridge Historical Society 
Tonbridge Line Commuters 
Tonbridge Lions Club 
Tonbridge Music Club 
Tonbridge Philharmonic Society 
Tonbridge Rotary Club 
Tonbridge Sports Association 
Tonbridge Theatre and Arts Club 
Tonbridge Town Team 
University of the Third Age 
Women's Institute 
 

  
  
 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
1 

 

 
 

TONBRIDGE AND MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

TONBRIDGE FORUM 
 

Monday, 7th September, 2020 
 

Present: Cllr N J Heslop (Chairman), Cllr J R S Lark (Vice-Chairman), 
Cllr Mrs J A Anderson, Cllr Mrs P A Bates, Cllr M D Boughton, 
Cllr V M C Branson, Cllr G C Bridge, Cllr A E Clark, Cllr D W King, 
Cllr K King, Cllr M R Rhodes, Cllr Miss G E Thomas, 
Cllr F G Tombolis. 
 
Together with County Councillors Mr R Long and Mr M Payne and 
representatives of: 
 
- Kent Police (Tonbridge),  
- Tonbridge Civic Society, 
- Tonbridge District Scout Council,  
- Tonbridge Historical Society,  
- Tonbridge Sports Association,  
- Tonbridge Town Team and  
- University of the Third Age 
 

 Councillors M A J Hood, D Lettington, H S Rogers and J L Sergison 
were also present pursuant to Council Procedure Rule No 15.21. 
 

 Apologies for absence were received from The Bridge Trust, 
Society of Friends and Tonbridge and Malling Seniors 
 

TF 20/8    MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED: That the Minutes of the meeting held on 24 February 2020 
be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  
 

TF 20/9    UPDATE ON ANY ACTION IDENTIFIED IN THE LAST MINUTES  
 
There were no items identified that were not covered elsewhere on the 
agenda. 
 

TF 20/10    BOROUGH COUNCIL'S RESPONSE TO COVID-19 AND  
REVIEW, RECOVERY AND RE-ORIENTATION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members to the first virtual meeting of 
Tonbridge Forum and invited the Chief Executive to provide an overview 
of the Borough Council’s response to the pandemic and outline the 
proposed way forward.  The Chief Executive drew attention to the report 
of the Management Team considered at an extraordinary meeting of 
Cabinet on 19 May which had provided a strategic overview of the 
Borough Council’s response to the national emergency, the impacts on 
service delivery, the introduction of priority initiatives and financial 

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



TONBRIDGE FORUM 7 September 2020 
 
 

 
2 

 

impacts.  The development of a future recovery plan had been 
considered at Cabinet of 3 June which had approved a one-year 
addendum to the Borough Council’s Corporate Strategy.  This would 
provide a framework within which to consider a wide range of issues in 
response to the Covid-19 pandemic. Reports to the Cabinet of 30 June 
had assessed the impacts, both immediate and longer term, on the 
Council’s finances, the Medium Term Financial Strategy and Savings 
and Transformation Strategy and allowed the Cabinet to review progress 
with the Corporate Plan – Addendum at a strategic level.  She explained 
that the Addendum contained three strategic themes – 
Review, Re-orientate and Recovery (i.e. what has been learnt, what 
changes are required and what will be different) and it was noted that 
these were evolving processes.   
 
The Chief Executive was pleased to report that the Borough Council had 
been well prepared for remote working, with 95% of staff working from 
home where possible.  In addition, a number of staff had been 
redeployed to support the work of the Community Support Hub which 
had been established to support vulnerable residents by providing 
essential food supplies and telephone befriending services.  The 
Borough Council had worked with community groups and voluntary 
organisations to identify and signpost to long term support networks. 
 
Reference was made to the financial support distributed to local 
businesses via rate relief and the delivery of Small Business Grants and 
Retail, Hospitality and Leisure Grants.  It was reported that £20.4M had 
been distributed to 1,670 businesses across the borough.   
 

TF 20/11    KENT POLICE UPDATE  
 
Sergeant Turtle provided a verbal update on the achievements made in 
the performance and neighbourhood policing agenda.  Particular 
reference was made to an increase in calls relating to anti-social 
behaviour and initiatives undertaken with the CSU in the area of Town 
Lock and with Clarion on the Summerhill Estate.   
 

TF 20/12    KENT COUNTY COUNCIL SERVICES UPDATE  
 
The County Councillors for Tonbridge (Michael Payne and Richard 
Long) provided an update on County initiatives and consultations with 
particular reference to the trial schemes funded through Tranche 1 of the 
Government’s Emergency Active Travel schemes.  County Councillor 
Payne advised that, following the expression of concern about the layout 
on the works at Quarry Hill, he had asked that officers demonstrate that 
the proposed layout of the cycle lane was safe.  He further advised that 
if this was not the case the trial layout would be removed by 
30 September 2020.  County Councillor Payne responded to a number 
of questions and comments on the scope of the town-wide 20mph zone 
and encouraged the submission of comments/concerns to Kent 
Highways during the 6 month trial period.  

Page 6



TONBRIDGE FORUM 7 September 2020 
 
 

 
3 

 

TF 20/13    TONBRIDGE AND MALLING SERVICES UPDATE  
 
The Chairman (in his role as Leader of the Council) provided an update, 
by way of a PowerPoint presentation, on key issues relevant to 
Tonbridge.  Particular reference was made to the level of interest from 
independent retailers in the Shopfront Improvement Scheme, the 
Economic Recovery Strategy (as part of the Kent and Medway 
Economic Renewal and Resilience Plan) and the Borough Council’s 
Climate Change Strategy.  It was noted that a report on the Climate 
Change Strategy would be submitted to the meeting of Street Scene and 
Environment Services Advisory Board on 5 October 2020.   
 
In addition, the Cabinet Member for Strategic Planning and Infrastructure 
(Councillor David Lettington) presented an overview of the Government 
proposals to reform the planning system in England contained in the 
‘Planning for the Future’ White Paper.  The Borough Council would 
consider its response at an extraordinary meeting of the Planning and 
Transportation Advisory Board scheduled for 29 September 2020 and 
residents were encouraged to submit comments via Ward Councillors.      
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 9.36 pm 
 
 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



   

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

TONBRIDGE & MALLING BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CABINET 

26 January 2021 

Report of the Chief Executive and Management Team 

Part 1- Public 

Executive Non Key Decisions 

 

1 CORONAVIRUS UPDATE 

This report provides an overview of a range of aspects as the Council and 

our communities continue to respond and adapt to living with coronavirus. 

 

1.1 Strategic Context 

1.1.1 At the time of writing, we are in a changing environment, as Covid-19 levels have 

risen dramatically across the country, including Kent and Tonbridge & Malling. 

The South East of England has seen some of the highest levels on infection 

across the Country. Having mover through various Tiers of restrictions, the whole 

of England is now in “national lockdown restrictions”. It is not the purpose of this 

report to set out the current restrictions as these are widely documented for all. 

1.1.2 We continue to operate in the Emergency Structure in accordance with the Civil 

Contingencies Act 2004.  This continues to be led by the Kent Resilience Forum 

(KRF), within which we are active partners.  We continue to participate in the 

command and control structure and also in a range of themed cells focussing on 

aspects including vulnerable persons and community support, outbreak 

management planning, compliance and enforcement and recovery.  

1.1.3 As Members would expect, we also continue to be actively involved in a wide 

range of conference calls with various Government departments and other 

partners including, Public Health, NHS and Police colleagues.  Public Heath are 

leading on all aspects of testing and track and trace, but we are active partners in 

this forum. NHS are the lead partners on the vaccination programme as this is 

progressed in various phases commencing with the priority vaccination 

programme implemented via the Primary Care Networks (PCNs). 

1.1.4 It is particularly important that we continue to allocate senior resources to this 

multi-agency activity, impact assessment activity and horizon scanning, as the 

national picture continues to change at significant pace. 

1.1.5 It is perhaps helpful to remind Members of the key themes used as a framework 

for previous reports 

Page 9

Agenda Item 5



 2  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

 Situation Update 

 Staff 

 Members and Democratic Process 

 TMBC Services /Financial Position 

 Business Sector 

 Community Issues 

 Communications 

1.1.6 It is not the intention to set out every action and activity, but it may be helpful to 

set out some key updates and issues under each of the themes above 

1.2 Situation Update 

1.2.1 At the time of writing the country is in a “national lockdown” following rapidly rising 

rates across the country and the impact of the new covid variant which has an 

increased transmission rate. The national restrictions place the emphasis on “stay 

at home” other than for prescribed activities.   

1.2.2 The NHS is under extreme pressure and at a local level elective treatments have 

been greatly reduced to provide capacity for covid treatment and bed space. It is 

no secret that patients have been sent out of County for treatment as capacity is 

at stretch.  The ambulance service, SECamb, has also been severely stretched. 

Various datasets are available for those wishing to monitor covid related activity 

Interactive Map | Coronavirus in the UK (data.gov.uk) and Coronavirus (COVID-

19) - Kent Public Health Observatory (kpho.org.uk) 

1.2.3 There is the national programme of symptomatic testing, booked via the national 

portal. This is now supplemented in Kent by a programme of asymptomatic testing 

sites (AST’s), led by Kent Public Health.  There are two ATS in the borough 

(Larkfield Library and the Hop Farm). Anyone wishing to book a non symptomatic 

test must book an appointment via the Kent Portal  (insert link). Non symptomatic 

tests should be repeated fortnightly. 

1.2.4 The national vaccine programme has also now been commenced led by the NHS.  

The first phase of vaccinations are being delivered in Hospital and some care 

home settings, with the community programme initially being delivered via PCNs. 

Residents in the priority groups will be invited for an appointment by their GP 

/PCN.  Vaccination appointments are not available on demand. A programme of 

mass vaccination sites is being developed and further details will be published in 

the coming weeks. Further information on Kent Vaccination programme can be 

found  Covid-19 vaccination :: Kent and Medway Clinical Commissioning Group 

(kentandmedwayccg.nhs.uk) 

Page 10

https://coronavirus.data.gov.uk/details/interactive-map
https://www.kpho.org.uk/health-intelligence/disease-groups/coronavirus-covid-19
https://www.kpho.org.uk/health-intelligence/disease-groups/coronavirus-covid-19
https://www.kentandmedwayccg.nhs.uk/your-health/coronavirus/covid19vaccine
https://www.kentandmedwayccg.nhs.uk/your-health/coronavirus/covid19vaccine


 3  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

1.3 Staffing 

1.3.1 We are following the national restrictions and all staff who can work from home 

are now doing so. Our IT capabilities allow the vast majority of tasks to be 

undertaken remotely with no impact on service delivery. We do have staff who 

need to attend the offices to deal with post, scanning and access to records. In 

addition there are staff working from other locations including car parks and 

country parks, with a further cohort who are working around the Borough 

undertaking regulatory inspections on site. In addition we have Covid Enforcement 

responsibilities which necessitate staff undertaking visits to premises across the 

Borough. We do not have any enforcement powers in respect of individual 

behaviours including the wearing of face masks, with these powers resting with 

the police.  

1.4 Community Issues 

1.4.1 Our Community Hub has continued to operate since March 2020. Incoming call 

levels remain low. Our staff continue to ensure that any residents with real 

difficulties are connected to the most appropriate support networks. 

1.4.2 The shielding programme has been re-introduced albeit in a different format.   As 

part of this programme we do make periodic contact to approximately 4,000 

residents on our Clinically Extremely Vulnerable (CEV) dataset.  The CEV list is 

updated daily as new people are added by their GP.  We make contact with new 

additions to the CEV list on a daily basis.  This is to check that all are coping and 

remind them of the community hub helpline. We also provide online support to any 

CEV resident without internet access, to help them register for priority 

supermarket delivery slots via the National Shielding Support System. We also 

provide contact details for organisations who can provide support for a range of 

issues including isolation, mental wellbeing and bereavement support as well as 

signposting people to local volunteer support networks if required.  

1.4.3 We have provided two tranches of funding to voluntary organisations. As 

previously reported to Cabinet, the first tranche was the Local Emergency 

Assistance Grants totalling £43,607.  The second tranche was reported to the 

meeting of Finance, Innovation and Property Advisory Board (06/01/2021) where 

a total of £52,417 was distributed to agencies with the specific remit of supporting 

households experiencing food and/or fuel poverty. 

1.4.4 In addition we are responsible for the assessment and distribution of Self-Isolation 

Support Payments. There are two elements to the Scheme, a mandatory strand 

and a separate discretionary one. So far we have distributed £125,500 of 

government funding. At the time of writing we are distributing approximately 

£40,000 per week in payments of £500 to individuals. Supporting those who are in 

work, and on certain benefits, or have low incomes while they must stay at home 

isolating is an important aspect in reducing the risk of spreading Covid-19. This 

Page 11



 4  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

Scheme was reported to the Finance, Property and Innovation Board on 6 

January 2021. 

1.5 Members and Democratic Process 

1.5.1 All Advisory Boards, Committees, Cabinet and Council continue to be held 

virtually by Microsoft Teams. Where permitted public speaking has also been 

facilitated. All meetings are live streamed on YouTube. 

1.5.2 The legislation permitting virtual meetings remains in place until 7 May 2021. 

1.5.3 The Overview and Scrutiny Committee (03/12/2020) agreed the scoping report to 

consider Virtual Meetings & Homeworking. A full report will be reported to a future 

meeting, within the context of any clarification of the legislative position on virtual 

meetings.   

1.6 Business Sector 

1.6.1 Since November onwards, in order to ensure that business grants continued to be 

distributed as swiftly as possible, a number of emergency decisions were made: 

 D200014EM – approval of the LRSG (Closed) Scheme on 11 November 

 D200015EM – approval of Additional Restrictions Grant Scheme on 18 

November 

 D200017EM – approval of the Christmas Support package for wet-led pubs 

on 30 December 

 D200018EM – approval of the LRSG (Open) Scheme on 31 December. 

This was subsequently reported to the Finance, Innovation and Property Advisory 

Board on 06 January 2021. 

1.6.2 At the time of writing this report, for the period relating to the November 2020 

lockdown, 467 businesses have accessed the Local Restrictions Support Grant 

(Closed) Scheme, amounting to over £785,000, and over 300 businesses have 

accessed the Additional Restrictions Grant Scheme, amounting to over £460,000.  

1.6.3 In addition, funding has started to be distributed for the period when the Borough 

was under Tier 3 and 4 restrictions. So far, 153 businesses have received Tier 3 

payments (amounting to £141,000) and 464 businesses have received Tier 4 

payments (amounting to £391,594). 

1.6.4 The Local Restrictions Support Grant (Open) Scheme, which also relates to the 

Tier 3 period and is available to businesses that are ineligible for the closed 

scheme, has so far received 140 applications and closes on 21 January 2021. 

Page 12



 5  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

1.6.5 The Christmas Support Package for wet-led pubs is also currently open for 

applications, and has seen 35 applications to date. 

1.6.6 Preparations are now being put in place for further funding schemes to cover the 

current lockdown period. 

1.7 TMBC Services 

1.7.1 Customer Services – The offices at both Kings Hill and Tonbridge remain open on 

an appointment only basis. Demand remains very low with one or two 

appointments per week at most. The Customer Services Team continue to handle 

a high level of telephone calls, including calls on behalf of an increasing number of 

services. This has supported capacity in back offices allowing great efficiency in 

services.  

1.7.2 Housing  - the housing service continue to receive an increased number of 

complex homelessness and housing needs enquiries as well as applications for 

the housing register.  

All the rough sleepers who were accommodated under the Government 

“Everyone In” policy at the start of the pandemic either have moved onto 

permanent accommodation with the support of the housing team or continue to be 

accommodated and have a move on plan in place. Although the recent lockdown 

has not prompted the Government to reintroduce the “Everyone In” policy, we will 

verify and properly assess the vulnerability of any identified rough sleeper and 

support where necessary. At this time of year our Severe Weather Emergency 

Protocol is also active whereby accommodation will be provided in periods of cold 

or inclement weather. A current priority for the rough sleeper cohort is to work 

closely with our health colleagues to ensure all are registered with a GP and can 

therefore take up any vaccination programme according to the priority criteria. 

Various sources of funding have been provided by central Government or 

successfully bid for by the team to support the work around rough sleepers.   

The numbers in temporary accommodation continue to remain high however pro-

active work with local housing providers especially Clarion Housing is enabling 

some move on. In addition working with local private landlords through improving 

our landlord offer is a key current focus to enable further opportunities for move on 

accommodation.  

1.7.3 Regulatory Functions and Enforcement – The Licensing and Environmental 

Health teams continue to work jointly with colleagues from the Community Safety 

Team and Kent County Council’s Trading Standards team to enforce the 

provisions of the Coronavirus legislation. Targeted, intelligent led enforcement 

visits have been carried out both during office hours and out of hours to respond 

to concerns raised. In the main businesses are largely compliant but where 

needed advice and support is provided and enforcement action will be considered 

where necessary. On average the teams are responding to 20-25 complaints per 

week. The main areas for concern around enforcement have been congregating 

Page 13



 6  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

of public around take away premises eg public house/café, premises not enforcing 

social distancing and premises operating that are not permitted at that time. The 

teams will continue with a pro-active enforcement presence in the various 

towns/village High St areas and will work alongside the Covid marshals to provide 

support where necessary.  

1.7.4 Test & Trace – the Kent Local Tracing Partnership was established by Kent 

County Council and the districts at the end of November 2020 to help improve the 

test and trace process. Local districts are searching their databases e.g. housing, 

council tax etc to obtain any telephone numbers for residents where they have 

tested positive for Covid-19 and they have not been contactable through details 

already provided. This is to ensure that they are self-isolating and that their close 

contacts are identified and also advised to self-isolate to reduce the spread of the 

virus. If the resident cannot be contacted by telephone they will be visited by a 

member of the Environmental Health team (door knock) to attempt to get the close 

contact form completed. In December we had 37 requests for resident contact 

details and were successful in finding new telephone contact details for 10 of 

these cases. We completed 11 door knocking visits and from these we completed 

5 close contact questionnaire forms.  

1.7.5 Leisure – The provision of Indoor Leisure facilities, operated by the Tonbridge and 

Malling Leisure Trust on the Council’s behalf, have been significantly impacted by 

government restrictions and guidance. In response to the first national lockdown 

all facilities were closed and whilst this service area was recovering to a certain 

extent the most recent lockdown has enforced their full closure once again. The 

Council has been working with the Trust to ensure its sustainability though this 

time and Cabinet will be aware from previous reports of the Council’s financial 

support.  An application has recently been made to the Government’s National 

Leisure Facilities Fund and it is hoped this will be successful.  The Council 

continues to meet weekly with the Trust to ensure a prompt response can be 

made to reinstating services when restrictions allow.  

With regard to Outdoor Leisure, the Council’s parks and open spaces remain 

open following announcement of the most recent lockdown alongside takeaway 

catering services that operate within our two Country Parks. Service provision has 

been reviewed in accordance with guidance and specific facilities have been 

closed that include, ball courts, tennis courts and outdoor gyms. Parks and open 

spaces have seen a significant increase in usage and this has placed additional 

pressure on regular maintenance tasks, especially the cleansing of sites and 

emptying of litter bins. This is being continually reviewed and frequency increased 

where appropriate. Tonbridge Cemetery remains open for funerals in accordance 

with government guidance though the Council has taken the decision to close the 

Chapel.  

The authorisation of events on Council land has been suspended though 

applications are already being received for 2021. These will need to be 

considered in the context of national restrictions and guidance.  

Page 14



 7  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

Updates on service provision are being taken to the Communities and Housing 

Advisory Board with the next update due in February 2020.   

1.7.6 Parking – The Council’s car parks remain fully operational and open to the public 

.Due to the pandemic usage of the car parks is understandably low with the 

exception of the car parks at the two Country Parks .Regular update reports are 

made to the Street Scene and Environment Advisory Board .  

1.7.7 Waste – Cabinet will be aware of the previous implications that Covid-19 has had 

on the delivery of core services within the Council’s Waste Contract. Through the 

period of the first lockdown this was most evident with around 50% of contractor 

staff either on sick leave, self-isolating or “shielding’’ at some point. This was 

combined with significantly increased tonnages across all waste streams, a 

situation that was replicated across Kent and nationwide. As such, service 

provision was prioritised to focus on key kerbside collections and resulted in a 

number of other service suspensions including garden waste collections, new 

garden waste subscriptions, bulky collections (charged doorstep collection 

service) and the Saturday Freighter Service. In addition resources were also 

temporarily directed away from Street Cleansing. 

As the Covid-19 staffing pressures eased for Urbaser all services were 

reintroduced with the exception of the Saturday Freighter Service that still remains 

suspended. Service performance significantly improved following the re-

introduction of services and is being reflected in increased round completions, a 

reduction in missed collections and reduced customer comments/complaints.  

With a national lockdown re-introduced on the 5 January 2021 and cases of Covid 

19 increasing locally, due consideration has been given to current and future 

service delivery. The Council is monitoring impacts in liaison with all other Local 

Authorities in the County through weekly briefings of the Kent Resource 

Partnership Forum. Of greatest concern is staffing levels and some Authorities 

have already taken steps to prioritise service provision in their area. Officers at 

Tonbridge and Malling are monitoring staffing levels on a daily basis in liaison with 

Urbaser and if required may have to prioritise key services in accordance with our 

Business Continuity Plan. As with the first national lockdown kerbside collections 

of general refuse and food waste, and the collection of clinical waste will be the 

highest priority. 

Regular updates on performance and the impacts and response to the Covid 19 

are being taken to the Street Scene and Environment Advisory Board and this 

also includes updates on key projects such as the roll-out to communal 

properties/flats, the reduction of the Council’s Bring Bank/Recycling Sites and the 

Transfer of Public Conveniences to Parish/Town Councils.  

1.8 Next Step & Corporate Strategy 

1.8.1 In this rapidly changing environment it is still difficult to anticipate what the next 

steps are in relation to Covid-19.  The commencement of both Asymptomatic 

Page 15



 8  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

testing programmes and the vaccination programme bring positive news for the 

future, but the longer term stability will not be felt for many months. 

1.8.2 At its meeting on 3rd June 2020, Cabinet adopted a one year Addendum to the 

Corporate Plan. Various reports have been submitted to a range of Committees 

and Advisory Boards, and continue to be reported further over the coming months. 

At the end of the 1 year Addendum, it would seem sensible to review progress 

and reflect on the potential need for a further Addendum, in the light of the 

prevailing scenario later in summer 2021.  

1.9 Legal Implications 

1.9.1 The statutory framework governing the response to the pandemic continues to 

evolve in response to the restrictions placed on both individuals and Local 

Authorities. It is an absolute requirement that we implement any new 

responsibilities and restrictions in a timely fashion. This must continue to be a 

corporate priority. 

1.9.2 The legal implications for any proposals emerging from the Corporate plan 

Addendum, will be assessed at the time of individual reports to Members.  

1.10 Financial and Value for Money Considerations 

1.10.1 The recent report to Finance Innovation and Property Advisory Board 

(06/01/2021), and subsequent report to Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

(19/01/2021), set out the Council’s financial position including the impact of the 

pandemic. At the time of writing there is nothing further to advise on. 

1.11 Risk Assessment 

1.11.1 The Council’s Strategic Risk Register is regularly updates and is on the agenda 

for Audit Committee on Monday 18 January 2021.  

1.12 Equality Impact Assessment 

1.12.1 The decisions recommended through this paper have a remote or low relevance 

to the substance of the Equality Act. There is no perceived impact on users. 

1.13 Policy Considerations 

1.13.1 Community 

1.13.2 Business Continuity/Resilience 

1.13.3 Healthy Lifestyles 

1.13.4 Climate Change 

1.13.5 Customer Contact 

Page 16



 9  
 

Cabinet NKD - Part 1 Public  26 January 2021  

1.13.6 Health and Safety 

 

1.13.7 Human Resources 

 

1.14 Recommendations 

 

1.14.1 That the Council’s ongoing response in respect of the response to Covid-19 be 

endorsed 

1.14.2 That the Corporate Plan Addendum be reviewed at the end of the first year, 

summer 2021 

Background papers: contact: Julie Beilby 

Nil  

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Borough Councils Response to the Coronavirus Pandemic

